
CREDIT UNION DEPARTMENT

STATE OF TEXAS

IN THE MATTER OF;

Susanna Guajardo

No. 20-013-CUD

FROHIBITON ORDER

The Credit Union Commissioner of the State of Texas ("Commissioner") has determined

that Susanna Guaiardo. while employed at Space City Credit Union (SCCU), intentionally

committed or participated in one or more criminal acts with the intent to injure or defraud

SCCU. In December 11, 2019, Susanna Guaiardo was sentenced on the charges of

Embezzlement, 18 U.S.C. § 657, and Aiding and Abetting, 18 U.S.C. § 2, charges to which

she previously pleaded guilty, in the U.S. District Court for the Southem District of Texas,

in connection with her employment at Space City Credit Union.

Based on the sentencing, the Commissioner has made a Determination of Misconduct in

accordance with Tex. Finance Code § 122.255, specifically, that Susanna Guaiardo

willfully neglected to perform her duty, committed a breach of trust, breached her fiduciary

duty to the credit union and its members, committed fraudulent or questionable practices

in the conduct of credit union business that endangers the credit union's reputation or

threatens its solvency, conducted the credit union's business in an unsafe, unauthorized, or

unlawful manner, and committed a criminal act that is a substantial detriment to the

reputation and conduct of credit union business.

Based on this finding of misconduct, the Commissioner has determined that this

Prohibition Order is necessary to prevent immediate or irreparable harm to the public or a

credit union or its depositors, creditors, or members.

Susanna Guaiardo has violated the following laws, rules, or regulations:

18 U.S.C. § 657 Embezzlement;

18 U.S.C. § 2 Aiding and Abetting; and;








